
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 18 August 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
Wednesday, 26 August 2020 at 2.00 pm 

Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 
Skype for Business 

 
 

Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
 
Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor 
Mrs Pam Bosworth, Councillor John Cottier, Councillor Helen Crawford, Councillor John 
Dawson, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Mike Exton, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor 
Gloria Johnson, Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, Councillor Philip Knowles, 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield, Councillor Penny Milnes, Councillor Virginia Moran, 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan, Councillor Mrs Judy Smith, Councillor Judy Stevens, 
Councillor Ian Stokes, Councillor Jill Thomas, Councillor Sarah Trotter, Councillor Hilary 
Westropp, Councillor Amanda Wheeler, Councillor Mark Whittington, Councillor Linda 
Wootten and Councillor Ray Wootten 

 
 

 
Invited 
Cabinet 

Members 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council  
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations  
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 

 

Agenda 

Budget Joint 

Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 



 

 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 26 August 2020 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 
1.   Comments from members of the public 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 

discretion. 

 

   
2.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
3.   Disclosure of interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting.  

 

   
4.   Action notes from the meeting held on 14 January 2020 (Pages 3 - 8) 

   
5.   Updates from the previous meeting  

   
6.   Amended Budget Proposals 2020/21 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources. 
(Pages 9 - 28) 

   
7.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

   

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/LTLSDC99


 
 

Meeting of the 
Budget - Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday, 14 January 2020, 2.00 pm 

 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
  

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor Chris Benn 
Councillor John Cottier 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Mike Exton 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
 

Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Penny Milnes 
Councillor Judy Stevens 
Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Councillor Hilary Westropp 
Councillor Amanda Wheeler 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Linda Wootten 
Councillor Ray Wootten 
 

Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Communities and HR 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture 
 

Other Members present 
 

Councillor Louise Clack 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
 

Officers  
 

Interim Chief Executive (Paul Thomas) 
Director of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Director of Law and Governance (Shahin Ismail) 
Strategic Director, Transformation and Change (Lee Sirdifield) 
Interim Strategic Director, Growth (Harry Rai) 
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery (Ken Lyon) 
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright) 
Assistant Director, Commercial and Operations (Ian Yates) 
Scrutiny Officer (Zena West) 
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page) 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

8. Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fellows, Kaberry-
Brown, Moran, Morgan, Ian Stokes, and Thomas.   
 

9. Disclosure of interests 
 
There were no interests disclosed.  
 

10. Action notes from the meeting held on 10 January 2019 
 
The action notes of the meeting held on 10 January 2019 were noted and 
agreed as a correct record.  
 

11. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
There were no updates from the previous meeting. 
 

12. Budget proposals 2020/21 and indicative budgets for 2021/22 and 
2022/23 
 
The Committee was given a presentation on the medium term financial 
outlook and budget update, which summarised the budget report and 
appendices and provided the national context in which the budget had been 
prepared.  
 
The Funding Position for the General Fund, General Fund Budget 
Proposals and Fees and Charges 
 
The funding settlement from the government had been confirmed for a one 
year period only. A continuation of the Rural Services Delivery Grant had been 
confirmed for the 2020/21 period. The New Homes Bonus funding amount had 
also been confirmed for 2020/21; this would be paid with the legacy payments 
due from previous years’ allocations, but was expected to reduce moving 
forward. The forecast Business Rates Reset was expected to reduce baseline 
funding in the medium term, although the level of reduction was not yet 
known.  
 
The anticipated reduction in government funding for Local Authorities would 
require an increased reliance on Council Tax levels in order to maintain a 
balanced budget and keep pace with any other funding reductions. The 
Council would be asked to consider increasing its proportion of the annual 
Council Tax charge in 2020/21 by £5 for a band D property, as permitted 
within the Council Tax referendum limits for District Councils.  
 
It was expected that a further forecast of funding would become available as 
government Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Reset updates were 

4



 
 

received. The budget proposals for 2020/21 had been developed to achieve a 
balanced position without the need to utilise reserves.  
 
Members were asked if they had any questions relating to the General Fund 
funding position and budgetary proposals or Fees and Charges. 
 
Members referred to Special Expense Area (SEA) levy currently included 
within the Council Tax charge for some areas of the district. One Member 
asked why the Deepings SEA could not be removed within the 2020/21 
budget proposals. It was explained that contractual commitments did not allow 
for this change to be implemented at the present time, but that it would be 
included in the negotiations for the long term leisure offer. The concept of 
SEAs across the district would be considered by the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee at a 
future meeting.  
 
Members enquired about the reviewed provision for Customer Services at the 
Stamford, Bourne and Deepings area offices. The Committee were informed 
that a report relating to the Customer Experience Strategy would be presented 
to the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its next 
meeting. The focus of the strategy would be on improving access for self-
service to reduce the number of manual queries and thereby the cost of 
service delivery, whilst also maintaining the required level of additional support 
where necessary. 
 

The Committee asked for a further explanation of the decision to reduce the 
funding allocated to InvestSK and enquired as to whether the Council had 
considered bringing the services back in-house. The Leader of the Council 
explained that a review of the services currently provided by InvestSK had 
been undertaken. This had resulted in the decision to realign the focus of the 
company and return the Arts and Heritage aspect and seconded roles back to 
the Council, to improve clarity over the provision of service in some areas. 
However, it was recognised that InvestSK were undertaking valuable work 
and that the most beneficial course of action at this time would be to fund 
InvestSK at a revised level, with the company procuring professional support 
directly from the Council. Further consideration of the outcomes of InvestSK 
would fall under the remit of the Companies Committee.   
 
One Member asked if the Council still held a pension reserve fund. Following 
the decision made previously to utilise the pension reserve fund held 
historically by the Council, the pension reserve would be fully utilised during 
the 2020/21 financial year at which time pension costs would move back into 
the core expenditure area. There was no requirement for the Council to hold a 
pension reserve. 
 
Officers were asked how the budget proposals promoted reuse and recycling 
across the district and why the green waste collection service had a proposed 
increase in charges. The Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 

5



 
 

confirmed that the charge for the green waste collection service had not been 
increased the previous year and that the increase within the 2020/21 budget 
proposals had been calculated on a cost recovery basis only. The Cabinet 
Member also assured the committee that the Council were keen to continue to 
work with the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership to promote reuse and recycling 
within the district, with the overall aim of encouraging members of the public to 
reduce the level of waste produced.  
 
Members asked if there were plans to introduce the facility for contactless 
card payments in Council owned car parks. This facility would not yet be 
introduced because of contractual restrictions but the request was noted as a 
future possibility. Members were reminded of the facility for members of the 
public to pay via phone. 
 
Reference was made to the savings included within the 2019/20 budget that 
had not been met; Members asked for assurance that forecast savings 
included within the 2020/21 budget proposals could be achieved. The Cabinet 
Member for Finance reassured the Committee that he was confident that the 
£350k procurement and £200k transformation savings targets would be met, 
following the extensive work that had been undertaken throughout the budget 
setting process to ensure that any forecast savings within the 2020/21 budget 
were achievable. The Leader of the Council added that Cabinet Members and 
senior officers would be held accountable for the delivery of the anticipated 
savings, which would be reviewed as part of performance monitoring by the 
Finance and Economic Development Overview and Scrutiny Committee. A 
senior management structure proposal would be developed by the Leader of 
the Council and the new Chief Executive, when appointed; this would be 
considered by the Employment Committee later in the year and support the 
budgeted management cost savings.       
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the HRA section of the report. He 
informed the committee that the Council would be adopting a refreshed 
Housing Strategy in the 2020/21 period and highlighted the rent proposals, 
which had a 2.7% proposed increase. Members were asked if there were any 
questions arising from this section of the report: 
 

 One Member asked if the funding for Disabled Facilities Grants would 
decrease in the 2020/21 period. The Cabinet Member for Communities 
and HR confirmed that the Disabled Facilities Grant funding would not 
decrease and would be demand driven within budgetary 
considerations. 

 
Capital Programme 2020/21 – 2022/23 and Reserves and Balances 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance introduced this section of the report by 
explaining that there was an anticipated capital investment programme 

6



 
 

required in the short to medium term. It was recommended that the £10m 
investment fund (funded by external borrowing) approved by Council at the 
last budget meeting be deferred to allow business cases and feasibility studies 
to be completed in respect of the changes for the leisure offer in the district.  
 
The committee were given the opportunity to ask any questions relating to this 
section of the report: 
 

 One Member referred to the £20k proposed reserve for climate change 
quick wins, small works and carbon efficiencies that had been 
requested to support the work of the Climate Change Action Task and 
Finish Group and asked if there was a total budgeted amount for 
environmental initiatives. The Cabinet Member for Commercial and 
Operations explained that as this proposed reserve related directly to 
small works and quick wins, any wider reaching environmental projects 
would need to be put forward for in-year budgetary amendments and 
would be assessed based on business cases. It was acknowledged 
that further environmental initiatives would likely be put forward after 
the work currently being undertaken with the Carbon Trust to establish 
the Council’s baseline carbon emissions had been completed.   

 One Member expressed concern as to whether the £200k allocated for 
the Deepings all weather pitch would be sufficient to meet costs. The 
committee were told that this amount was anticipated to be enough to 
replace the existing pitch for the appropriate usage requirements.   

 The committee asked for a further explanation of the capital programme 
plans for improvements at Welham Street car park. The Cabinet 
Member for Commercial and Operations made reference to the 
Council’s intention to improve the maintenance of its assets, including 
car parks. The maintenance works were considered necessary to 
improve the car park provision at Welham Street and to address the 
antisocial behaviour issues identified. 

 Officers were asked what the ‘specific grants (to be confirmed)’ 
identified in the report at 6.2 referred to. It was confirmed that a grant 
from Homes England was included in this amount. The grant related to 
the new build programme; it was site specific and calculated per unit.    

 
Other Financial Considerations 
 
Members were asked if they had any questions relating to this section of the 
report, or final questions relating to other areas: 
 

 The outdoor recreation fees and charges were noted by a Member who 
asked why indoor recreation fees and charges (leisure centre charges) 
had not been included within the report. It was confirmed that the 
indoor recreation charges had not yet been agreed with the contractor 
but would be included within the final budget papers.  

 One Member referenced the transformations savings identified in 
appendix G, and asked whether the £200k saving would be an ongoing 

7



 
 

saving in subsequent years and whether the £150k per annum cost of 
the Intelligent Automation project with Ernst and Young was included in 
this amount. It was confirmed that the annual £200k saving would be 
offset against the £150k per annum cost of the project but that the 
saving was expected to grow in future years. 

 A member of the committee asked if there would be other budgetary  
options for Members to consider when the final budget papers were 
considered by Council, referring to section 12.1 of the report. Officers 
explained that the options available were contained within the report, 
but any changes requested by Members would be discussed prior to 
the final papers being submitted to Council. 

 
The Committee noted the content of the report and the appended documents 
and considered that a comprehensive review of the budget proposals for 
2020/21 in respect of the General Fund (revenue and capital) and Housing 
Revenue Account (revenue and capital) had been undertaken. Officers were 
thanked for the information provided and Members noted that following its 
consideration at Cabinet the final budget would be presented for adoption at 
the February meeting of Council.    
 

13. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 
There were no matters of urgent business to discuss. 
 

14. Close of meeting 
 
The meeting closed at 15:25.  
 
 

8



 

 

 

Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

26 August 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

 

Amended Budget Proposals 2020/21 

As a result of the Covid-19 crisis there is a requirement to review the budget framework to reflect 
the changes in the income and expenditure budgets set by Council on 2 March 2020. 

 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

 
01476 406210 

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 12 August 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  17 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

17 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the draft 
proposed budget amendments for the 2020/21 budget framework and make any 
specific recommendations to Cabinet for its consideration on 8 September 2020 
before it is presented to Council on 17 September 2020. 

 

9

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The budget framework for 2020/21 was approved by Council on 2 March 2020 and was built 

on allocating resources to drive forward the Council’s ambitions focussing on supporting the 

economy, competitiveness and providing quality services to its residents.  Within a few 

weeks of the budget being approved, the country was facing the worst health crisis in a 

lifetime and the Council, like every organisation, has been impacted upon. 

1.2 This report captures all of the financial implications of the pandemic that have impacted 

upon the 2020/21 budget and seeks changes to the current year’s budget framework in 

order that amendment recommendations can be presented to Council on 17 September 

2020.  The report builds on the information presented to the Finance, Economic 

Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 26 May 2020, 

30 June 2020 and 28 July 2020.  All of the finance reports have provided members with the 

most relevant financial information and given the projected forecasts of financial impact from 

both an income and cost perspective.  This continuous monitoring and forecasting has 

placed the Council in a positive position to make budgetary amendments with a higher 

degree of confidence. 

1.3 The scope of the amended budget proposals are specifically General Fund revenue budgets 

as this is the area that has been impacted upon directly.  Therefore there is no requirement 

at this time to propose any amendments to the revenue budgets for the Housing Revenue 

Account.  

1.4 The Government’s financial response to date can be categorised as 

• Financial assistance to local authorities.  To date the Council has received three specific 
financial support packages totalling £1.675m and an allocation of £924k for a Council 
Tax Hardship Fund. The Government has also deferred grant payments due from the 
Council for a three month period to provide some short term cash flow support.  

• Financial assistance to businesses.  This has primarily been in the form of direct 
business rates relief to the retail and hospitality sector and cash grants to businesses 
(administered by the Council); alongside the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 
(“furloughing scheme”), administered by Central Government.  To date over £27.5m of 
grant payments have been made to qualifying businesses in the district in recent weeks 
providing much needed cash-flow support.  

• Other funding measures.  The announcement of the deferral of the funding reform and 
the Business Rates reset by a further year (i.e. no longer April 2021) provides some level 
of funding certainty for 2021/22.  The Government also introduced the Coronavirus Job 
Retention Scheme and the Council has utilised this where appropriate, specifically the 
Arts and Building Control services.  There has also been funding in respect of re-opening 
High Streets, Homelessness and New Burdens.   

1.5 On 2 July 2020, the Secretary of State for Communities, Housing and Local Government 

announced the further funding support packages including: 

• A further £500 million of funding to cover local authority spending pressures 

• A co-payment mechanism for irrecoverable Sales, Fees and Charges income, with the 
Government covering 75% of losses beyond 5% of planned income 

• Phased repayment of Collection Fund of the predicted deficits over the next 3 years 

• A commitment to determine what support is needed to help councils meet the pressures 
of irrecoverable tax income at the Spending Review 

10



 

 
 

1.6 On 16 July 2020, the funding allocation of the £500m was announced and it was confirmed 

that the Council will receive £194k as a contribution towards spending pressures.  The 

allocation methodology has been confirmed as primarily population and levels of 

deprivation.  The split has allocated 93% to upper tier authorities and 7% to lower tier 

authorities.  

1.7 As well as the increased spending during the pandemic, there has also been a significant 

impact on income. Again, this has been regularly reported to the Committee with actual 

income received and forecasting predictions based on assumed levels of economic 

recovery.  To help mitigate this, the Government is introducing a co-payment scheme to 

compensate local authorities for relevant, irrecoverable losses in 2020-21. Under this 

scheme, councils bear the first 5% of losses compared to their budgeted income – reflecting 

the fact these income sources are by their nature volatile from one year to the next – but the 

Government will support those worst affected by covering 75p in every pound of losses 

beyond this. Further details of the scope of this scheme, including the principles of the areas 

which will be covered is not yet available so it is unclear what categories will be included 

within scope of reimbursement and whether this will be gross income lost or net of 

expenditure savings in the affected areas. 

1.8 In summary the Council has received the following Covid-19 direct funding support: 

Table 1 – Covid-19 funding 

Funding Amount (£) Allocation Details 

Tranche 1 64,622 Mixture of Adult Social Care Relative 
Needs Formula (87%) and Settlement 
Funding Assessment (13%) 

Tranche 2 1,416,290 Allocation based on a per capita basis, 
and a 65:35 split between county and 
district authorities 

Tranche 3 194,639 Allocation 93% upper tier and 7% 
lower tier authorities based on 
population and deprivation  

Re-opening High 
Streets Safely fund 

126,000 Contribution towards direct costs and 
support resourcing  

Co-payment 
scheme 

TBA 75% of income losses beyond 5% of 
planned income 

Total 1,801,551 This is shown at table 3 

 

Fees and Charges 

1.9 The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee has been monitoring the key fees and charges income since the beginning of 

the financial year in order to assess the financial impact of the lockdown restrictions.  The 

first quarter of the financial year has now been completed (April – June) and the actual 

income is shown below (and shown in greater detail at Appendix A).  The adverse variance 

when compared to approved budgets for the same period is £914,675.   The recovery 

modelling is constantly reviewed as the Council, like the majority of districts, relies on fees 

and charges as a key component of its financial structure as it plays a key role in enabling 

11



 

 
 

the Council to continue to provide quality services to its residents and support the delivery 

of the Council’s priorities. The impact of specific key areas that were identified from the 

outset of the pandemic continue to be impacted upon and the latest position is outlined 

below.  Appendix A provides full details of the analysis of the income received and the 

assumed recovery over the remainder of the year.  Therefore, it is accepted that the longer-

term full impact will not be known for many months.  Based on the table analysis below, the 

‘at risk’ income budgets will be reduced by £3.1m for the current year. 

Table 2 – Proposed Amended Income Budgets 

Service Area Income 
Budgets 

Gross 
Income 
Current 

Budget (£) 

 

Profiled 
Original 
Budget 1 
April – 30 
June (£) 

Actual 
Income for 

the period 1 
April – 30 
June (£) 

Proposed 
Amended 

Gross 
Income 

Budget (£) 

Arts Centres 1,149,250 287,312 20,200 221,319 

Building Control 657,900 164,475 125,300 470,698 

Car Parking fees 1,293,000 323,250 11,100 366,675 

Planning and Land Charges  1,370,600 342,650 235,800 955,365 

Markets 252,700 63,175 18,000 100,128 

Licensing 282,500 70,625 91,200 260,700 

Property Commercial Income 1,107,850 276,962 187,100 851,810 

Trade Waste 366,500 91,625 39,200 249,938 

Treasury Investment Interest 236,000 59,000 36,500 142,700 

Totals 6,716,300 1,679,074 764,400 3,619,333 

 

1.10 Given the volatility that has been experienced since the commencement of the financial 

year, it is inevitable that the budget framework is no longer reflective or accurate of the 

current operational issues and demands.  This is taking the form of income no longer 

performing at budgeted levels but also new cost pressures being experienced.  There are 

also positive cost avoidances and lower than originally budgeted expenditure activities.  In 

total 37% of the budget framework requires amendment which reflects the scale of the 

changes that are required. 

12



 

 
 

1.11 The budget set by Council on 2 March 2020 was £19.157m.  Subsequent amendments to 

the budget framework have been approved by the Council and there have been a number 

of budgets carried over that were approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 13 

August 2020.  This has had the effect of increasing the budgets for the General Fund to 

£20.195m at net cost level. 

1.12 The table presented below shows at summary level the General Fund and provides an 

update on the proposed budgets at each Directorate Level.  It can be seen that, at net cost 

level, there has been a net £4.1m increase which is a combination of income losses, 

expenditure reductions and anticipated cost increases.  This analysis has been based on 

three months of actual activity (April – June) and forecasting for the remaining 9 months of 

the financial year.  It is therefore inevitable that there remains a degree of volatility and 

uncertainty in the forecasting assumptions for the financial year. 

Table 3 – General Fund Proposed Budget Framework  

Description 

2020/21 
Current 

Budget + 
Approved 

Carry 
Forwards 

2020/21 
Proposed 

Budget  

Proposed 
Amendment 

Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Commercial & Operations 7,408 8,586 1,178 

Finance, Legal & Democratic 4,847 5,850 1,003 

Growth 6,536 8,587 2,051 

Transformation & Change 3,962 3,931 (31) 

HRA Recharge (2,558) (2,566) (8) 

Net Cost of Service 20,195 24,388 4,193 

Interest Payable and Receivable (236) (107) 129 

Minimum Revenue Provision 302 148 (154) 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 72 72 0 

Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) 0 

Net Budget Requirement 16,219 20,387 4,168 

General Funding (15,860) (15,860) 0 

Covid-19 specific funding* 0 (1,801) (1,801) 

Total Funding (15,860) (17,661) (1,801) 

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves (359) (263) 96 

Net Budget Deficit 0 2,463 2,463 

*the detail of this is provided at table 1 but does not include any funding in respect of income funding losses.  

The details of this scheme have not been announced at the time of compiling the report. 

 

13



 

 
 

The detail for the proposed budget amendments are contained in the supporting appendices 

under each Directorate heading but the following is a summary: 

Table 4 – Budget Movement summary 

Heading Financial Impact  

£’000 

Commentary  

Income Changes – high risk 
areas 

3,097 This is detailed at column 
K at Appendix A 

Other Income Changes 277 Lower than budgeted 
benefits overpayments 

Cost Pressures 1,421 Covid-specific costs and 
realignment and reduced 
budget for transformation, 
procurement and process 
automation  

Leisure Provider support 
payments  

800 Approval by Council 16th 
July 2020 

Forecast expenditure 
reductions  

(1,402) Reduced expenditure as 
detailed at supporting 
Appendix B 

Change to net cost of 
service 

4,193 This is shown at table 3 
above – net cost of 
service 

 

1.13 After applying the confirmed funding contributions from Government, the funding deficit is 

reduced to £2.4m.  However, the actual funding shortfall will be exposed to ongoing 

uncertainty and volatility in the forecasting assumptions of income recovery and limited 

further exposure to unforeseen costs.    As referenced previously, the detail of the income 

losses co-payment scheme that has been announced by Government is not currently known 

but based on the headline summary of the scheme, indicative calculations suggest that a 

contribution of between £1.5m and £2m will be available.  If this is the case, then the Council 

will only be facing a shortfall of between £500k - £1m.   

It is a statutory requirement to approve a balanced budget and therefore in order to do this, 

it is proposed to utilise the budget stabilisation reserve in the event that the Government 

income losses co-payment scheme is insufficient to meet the shortfall. 

Members will recall that Council approved the formation of a budget stabilisation reserve as 

part of the 2020/21 budget framework, the primary objective of which is to respond to budget 

volatility and ensure a balanced position is maintained without any detrimental impact on 

services.  The scenario currently facing the Council aligns to the objective and should be 

utilised as necessary.  The balance of the reserve is currently £2.843m.  Therefore, the 

proposal can be stated as: 

 

 

 

14



 

 
 

Heading £’m 

Net Budget Deficit 2.463 

Combination of budget stabilisation reserve,  co-payment scheme 
funding and further expenditure reductions (to be identified during 
the year) 

(2.463) 

Net Budget Forecast 0 

 

The use of the budget stabilisation reserve is positioned as ‘as last resort’ and will only be 

considered after other proactive cost avoidance and reduction initiatives have been 

considered.  These include the continual review of expenditure to identify reductions 

(including the deferral or removal of non-urgent expenditure), review of staffing vacancies 

and the prioritisation of key staffing recruitment and the acceleration of savings, 

transformation and invest to save proposals.  As the implementation of these initiatives 

continue, the positive impact on the deficit reduction will be reported to members during the 

remainder of the financial year. 

1.14 The proposed amended 2020/21 budget framework is shown at Appendix D alongside the 

indicative budget proposals for the following two years (2021/22 and 2022/23).  These years 

remain unchanged from those presented to Council on 2 March 2020.  It is highly anticipated 

there will be an ongoing impact on the future years’ budgets specifically from an income 

perspective.  However it is too soon to accurately predict what this may be at the present 

time but the budget preparatory work will consider this in the coming weeks. 

1.15 Other areas that will require a review for 2021/22 are contained at lines 12 – 17 at Appendix 

D: 

Line 12 – Council Tax.  The highest risks contained in this line relate to the increase in 

Council Tax support scheme claimants, slower than modelled tax base (housing) growth 

and future Council Tax increases. 

Line 13 – Government grants.  The figures shown are based on pre-Covid-19 

announcements and the Spending Review will undoubtedly result in a change to the figures 

presented. 

Line 14 – Retained business rates.  The figures shown are based on previously provided 

funding levels following the business rates reset that was due for implementation from April 

2021.  It has been confirmed that the business rates review and reset will now be delayed 

by a year and therefore will be April 2022.  This line will be updated once further information 

is provided. 

Line 15 – New Homes Bonus.  It has been announced that the scheme will cease from April 

2023 but there are no details of any scheme that may replace it. 

Line 16 – Collection Fund.  This Fund is a statutory requirement of the Council and all the 

income from Business Rates and Council Tax is contained in this account as well as the 

payments to the major precepting authorities.  The primary risks are in respect of the 

ongoing collection from residents and businesses and the impact on the Council tax base.  

 

 

   

15



 

 
 

2 General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Capital Programmes 

2020/21 

2.1 The capital programmes have been updated to reflect the anticipated forecast position as 

at 31 March 2021 and these are shown in detail at Appendix E.  The following table 

provides a summary position: 

Heading Current Budget (inc. carry 
forwards) 2020/21 

£’m 

Forecast updated Budget 
2021/22 

£’m 

General Fund 4.077 3.622 

Housing Revenue Account 27.736 17.616 

Total 31.813 21.238 

 

Each of the projects set out in each capital programme have been reviewed and where 

necessary, proposed deferrals or re-profiling of expenditure has been included for 2021/22.  

This will continue to be reviewed during the remainder of the financial year. 

3 Looking Ahead 

3.1 The focus of the report is primarily reviewing, updating and proposing amendments to the 

2020/21 budget framework in response to the Covid-19 impact.  The budget setting 

proposals for 2021/22 will commence in the coming weeks and will align and drive forward 

the actions arising from the Corporate Plan.  It is clear there will be financial challenges 

ahead arising from the ongoing impact, specifically income recovery levels and emerging 

expenditure pressures.  Therefore, the medium term outlook will remain uncertain for the 

foreseeable period.     

4 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

4.1  The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee has been kept up to date throughout the financial year. 

5 Available Options Considered 

5.1 There is no option but to review and amend the current budget framework due to the 

ongoing impact from both an income and expenditure perspective. 

6 Preferred Option 

6.1 The preferred option is set out in this report.  

7 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

7.1 The current approved budget framework is no longer reflective of the actual position and 

requires amendments in specific areas. 

8 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

8.1 Following the Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting, the proposals will 

be presented to Cabinet on 8 September and then Council on 17 September 2020. 

 

16



 

 
 

9 Financial Implications  

9.1 These are included and considered throughout the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance  

10 Legal and Governance Implications  

10.1 The arrangements for making in-year amendments to the budget framework are set out at 

Article 4.21 of the Constitution.  The responsibility for agreeing the budget framework lies 

with the Council. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Executive 

11 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

11.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising as a result of this report. 

12 Risk and Mitigation 

12.1 An updated Risk Register is provided at Appendix C. 

13 Community Safety Implications  

13.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report  

14 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

14.1 This report does not have a carbon impact. 

15 Background Papers 

15.1 Council Budget Report: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=

4 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee Reports: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3897&Ver=

4 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3907&Ver=

4 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3908&Ver=

4 

16 Appendices 

16.1 Appendix A – Income Budget Projections 

16.2 Appendix B – Details of proposed budget amendments 

16.3 Appendix C – Financial Risk Register  

16.4 Appendix D – Medium Term Financial Plan Summary 

16.5 Appendix E – Forecast Capital Programmes  

 

17

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3897&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3897&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3907&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3907&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3908&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3908&Ver=4


 

 
 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

8 June 2020 

Previously Considered by: Not applicable 

Final Decision date   17 September 2020 

 

18



COLUMN HEADING A B C D E F G H I J K L

High Risk Area

20-21 

Original 

Approved 

Budget (£)

Expected 

Loss (£) for 

Apr-June

Actual £ 

income 

received 

April - June

Actual Loss 

(£) April - 

June

Expected % 

Impact 0-3 

months 

(April-June)

Actual % 

income lost 

0-3 months 

(April - June)

Realistic 

%age of 

income lost 

for July-Sept

Realistic 

Impact for 

July-Sept

Realistic 

%age of 

income lost 

for Oct-Apirl

Realistic 

Forecast for 

Oct-Apr

Realistic Forecast 

Reduction 20/21 

Columns D+H+J

Amended 

Budget 

Proposed 20-

21 (£)

Arts Centres 1,149,250 287,313 20,200 267,113 100% 93% 90% 258,581 70% 402,238 927,931 221,319

Building Control 657,900 98,685 125,300 39,175 60% 24% 30% 49,343 30% 98,685 187,203 470,698

Car Parks 1,293,000 323,250 11,100 312,150 100% 97% 70% 226,275 60% 387,900 926,325 366,675

Planning and Land Charges 1,370,600 195,311 235,800 106,850 57% 31% 30% 102,795 30% 205,590 415,235 955,365

Markets 252,700 50,540 18,000 45,175 80% 72% 70% 44,223 50% 63,175 152,573 100,128

Licencing 282,500 24,719 91,200 -20,575 35% -29% 20% 14,125 20% 28,250 21,800 260,700

Property Commercial Income 1,107,850 77,550 187,100 89,863 28% 32% 20% 55,393 20% 110,785 256,040 851,810

Commercial Waste 366,500 41,231 39,200 52,425 45% 57% 30% 27,488 20% 36,650 116,563 249,938

Treasury Investment Income 236,000 23,600 36,500 22,500 40% 38% 40% 23,600 40% 47,200 93,300 142,700

TOTAL HIGH RISK INCOME 6,716,300 1,122,198    764,400        914,675        67% 54% 48% 801,821        41% 1,380,473       3,096,969                  3,619,331    

Potential of Impact on Income Budgets - 

19

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Summary of Changes to Budgets  

 

 

Commercial & Operations £000’s 

Income loss car-parking 926 

Car parking additional maintenance 3 

Car parking income collection savings (8) 

Building control income loss 187 

Building control – reduced contribution from other local authorities 27 

Building control – furloughing of staff (34) 

Building control – other staffing savings (23) 

Building control – partnership local authorities’ contribution to trading account loss (103) 

Markets – income loss 153 

Markets – savings due to reduced offer (31) 

Trade Waste – income loss 117 

Trade Waste – waste disposal savings (41) 

Trade Waste – additional staff costs offset by reduction in equipment 14 

Refuse & Recycling – fuel savings (reduced prices) (18) 

Street scene – vacancy rate cannot be fully achieved for operational reasons 35 

Additional green waste income – greater than budgeted uptake (101) 

Food Waste Pilot Costs in year (funded from monies allocated from previous year) 49 

Licencing – income loss 57 

Environmental protection & commercial forecast savings (26) 

Enforcement Fine Income loss (following suspension of car parking charges) 33 

Enforcement vacancy savings (14) 

Expenditure savings from postponed / cancelled fairs and festivals (141) 

Income loss from fairs / festivals 35 

Borne Corn Exchange savings through closure during Covid-19 (9) 

Borne Corn Exchange income loss 25 

The Reopening High Street Safely fund expenditure (offset by specific grant) 126 

Additional rent following letting of Grantham Offices (45) 

Minor Changes to forecasts (e.g. reduction in park letting fees, small vacancy savings) (15) 

Forecast changes – Commercial & Operations 1,178 

 

Finance, Legal & Democratic £000’s 

Covid-19 Specific Costs (changes to buildings, PPE, software) 408 

Benefits overpayments recovery lower than forecast (revised debt recovery policy) 230 

Management review delay (no full year effect) 225 

Reduced procurement savings (procurement exercises on hold during first 3 months) 98 

Vacancy rates lower than modelled 79 

Increase to Members’ ward budgets 26 

Partnership savings (15) 

Increased Council Tax Subsidy Grant (48) 

Forecast changes – Finance, Legal & Democratic 1,003 

 

  

21

Appendix B



 Summary of Changes to Budgets  

 

Growth £000’s 

Income loss – Arts Centres 928 

Arts Centres – furlough of staff (to date) (60) 

Arts Centres – other savings through closure (396) 

Income loss – Planning and Land Charges 415 

Land charges – reduced costs of searches  (37) 

Income loss – Property 300 

Income loss – Cinema complex 50 

Leisure Centres – Contractual Claim for income loss 800 

Leisure Centres – arbitration for income loss  19 

Leisure Centres – business rates savings during closure (93) 

Leisure Centres – water filtration savings during closure (65) 

Leisure Centres – loss of recoverable income at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre 25 

Homelessness – cost of emergency housing through Covid-19 202 

Minor other forecast changes – primarily vacancy related (37) 

Forecast changes – Growth 2,051 

 

Transformation & Change £000’s 

Customer experience savings potential for savings delayed due to Covid-19 26 

Vacancies greater than modelled (57) 

Forecast changes – Transformation & Change (31) 

 

22



Finance Risk Register 

 
 

     
 

 

Risk 
ref 

Risk description 
Existing 
controls/plans/mitigations 

Action to be taken to enhance or expand 
existing controls 

Likelihood Impact Rating Priority 
L/M/H/VH 

Risk 
category 

1 

Income 
recovery 
forecasting 
amounts differ 
from actuals   

Monthly modelling of actual 
income received compared with 
forecasts assumptions 

Existing controls are appropriate and will 
continue to be reviewed  

2 3 6 Medium Financial 

2 

Forecast 
expenditure 
reductions vary 
over the coming 
months   

Monthly budget monitoring is in 
place across all service areas to 
review expenditure forecasts  

Monthly monitoring is in place so no further 
controls are required at this time  

2 4 8 Medium Financial 

3 

No further 
tranches of 
Govt funding is 
received   

There are no existing controls in 
place as this risk is external to the 
organisation  

The Council is actively involved in lobbying for 
further Government financial support 
although there is no confirmation of further 
funding being available  3 4 12 High Financial 

4 

Ongoing  
reduction of 
collection rates 
for Council tax 
and Business 
Rates 

Collection rates are monitored on 
a monthly basis 

Collection rates are monitored on a monthly  
basis and benchmarked against neighbouring 
authorities to share best practice  
 
Reinstatement of Recovery policy  

3 3 9 Medium Financial 

23

A
ppendix C



5 

Reinstatement 
of lockdown 
restrictions that 
have a negative 
impact on 
economic 
recovery  

There is an ongoing risk that the 
easing of restrictions either from 
a national or local perspective has 
a detrimental impact on the 
economic recovery of the District. 
This is an external risk and 
therefore no internal controls 
exist  

Ongoing monitoring is in place to review the 
situation as it evolves 

2 4 8 Medium  Financial 

 

 

24



2020/21 - 2022/23 General Fund Revenue Summary

Description

2020/21 

Current 

Budget 

£000

2020/21 

Amended 

Budget 

£000

2021/22 

Indicative 

Budget 

£000

2022/23 

Indicative 

Budget 

£000

1 Commercial & Operations 7,408 8,586 7,860 7,980

2 Finance, Legal & Democratic 4,847 5,850 4,355 4,584

3 Growth 6,536 8,587 5,274 5,262

4 Transformation & Change 3,962 3,931 3,671 3,717

5 HRA recharge (2,558) (2,566) (2,601) (2,678)

6 Net Cost of Services 20,195 24,388 18,559 18,865

7 Interest Payable & Investment Income (236) (107) (252) (236)

8 Minimum Revenue Provision 302 148 296 291

9 Revenue Contribution to Capital 72 72 189 231

10 Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,586) (4,722)

11 Net Budget Requirement 16,219 20,387 14,206 14,429

Funding & Resources:

12 Council Tax (Excluding Parishes) (7,840) (7,840) (8,199) (8,569)

13 Government Grants (295) (295) (563) (204)

14 Retained Business Rates (4,954) (4,954) (3,757) (3,831)

15 New Homes Bonus (1,814) (1,814) (832) (524)

16 Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (957) (957) 0 0

17 Covid-19 Specific Grants 0 (1,801) 0 0

18 Total Funding (15,860) (17,661) (13,351) (13,128)

Transfer to/from reserves:

19 Building Control Reserve 0 (51) 0 0

20 Busines Rates Volatility Reserve 0 0 0 0

21 Community Fund 0 0 0 0

22 Crowdfunding (64) (64) 0 0

23 Events and Festivals 0 0 0 0

24 Grants (191) (240) (12) (12)

25 ICT Reserve (217) (217) (70) (212)

26 Individual Electoral Registration 0 0 0 0

27 Invest to Save (262) (181) (150) 0

28 Local Priorities Reserve (136) (136) 0 0

29 Member Training and Development 0 0 0 0

30 NHB Transfer to Reserves 1,814 1,814 832 524

31 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees (56) (56) (56) (56)

32 Pensions Reserve - Current Employees (58) (58) 0 0

33 Property Maintenance Reserve (155) (90) (77) (77)

34 Regeneration Reserve (671) (621) (310) (160)

35 Special Expenses 17 17 29 29

36 Workshop reserve (24) (24) (29) (32)

37 District Local Plan (54) (54) 0 0

38 Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (57) 39 157 4

39 Budget Carry Forwards from 19/20 Underspends (302) (302) 0 0

40 NET BUDGET DEFICIT 0 2,463 1,012 1,305

41 Proposed Actions: Budget stablisation reserve and use (2,463) 0 0

of expected further Government funding 20/21

42 NET BUDGET POSITION 0 1,012 1,305

25

Appendix D



This page is intentionally left blank



2020/21 - 2022/23 General Fund Capital Programme

Scheme Description

Current Budget + 

Carry Forwards 

2020/21

Forecast 

Spend 

2020/21

2021/22 2022/23 Requirement

Commercial & Operations

1 CCTV Matrix 12 12 12 12

2 Disabled Facilities Grant 860 860 0 0

3 Pool Vehicles 26 0 26 0 Deferral to 21/22

4 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 170 145 162 484 Partial deferral to 21/22

5 Trade Waste Bins 24 24 24 24

6 Uffington Rd - Washdown Facilities 12 12 0 0

7 Vehicle Replacement Programme 655 655 660 825

8 Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 100 100

9 Vehicle Electric Charging Points 39 39 0 0

Finance, Legal & Democratic

10 Financial System Upgrade 50 0 50 0 Deferral to 21/22

11 Digital Services Compliance 55 55 0 0

Growth

12 Bourne Corn Exchange- Renovations 168 98 0 0 £70k to SAC roof

13 Car Park Barriers 50 0 50 0 Deferral to 21/22 

14 Welham Car Park - Resurfacing 340 340 0 0

15 Welham Car Park - Security 24 9 15 0 Deferral to 21/22

16 Welham Car Park - Lift 50 50 0 0

17 Deepings LC - All Weather Pitch 200 200 0 0

18 Heritage Action Zone - Grantham 120 120 260 220

19 GAC - Renovations 175 175 0 0

20 GAC - Digital Boards 15 0 15 0 Defer

21 Meres LC - Lighting 10 10 0 0

27

A
ppendix E



22 SK Stadium Hammer Cage 12 12 0 0

23 Stamford Arts Centre - Roof repairs 195 265 0 0
£70k from Bourne Corn 

Exchange project

24 Shop Front Scheme 181 56 125 0 Partial deferral

25 Tourism Signage 100 0 100 0 Deferral to 21/22

26 Market Stall Covers 29 1 28 0 Deferral to 21/22

27 Public Realm 0 15 0 0

28 Meres Leisure Centre - Boiler 65 29 36 0 Partial deferral

29

Invest & Regeneration (Elm Street 

Stamford & Stonebridge Road 

Grantham demolition )

290 290 0 0

30 Cycle Shelter & Changing 50 50 0 0

4,077 3,622 1,663 1,665

28


	Agenda
	4 Action notes from the meeting held on 14 January 2020
	6 Amended Budget Proposals 2020/21
	Appendix A - Potential of Financial Impact on Income Budgets
	Appendix B - Directorate summary tables
	Appendix C - Finance Risk Register
	Appendix D - MTFP Summary
	Appendix E - Capital Programmes


